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EXCHANGE COMMISSIONWashington,DC 20549A FORM10-QA 4™ QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION
13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 A Forthe quarterly period ended September 30,

2024A orA &~ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF
1934 A Forthe transition period from to .A CommissionFile Number: 001-40874A CingulateInc.
(Exactname of registrant as specified in its charter)A Delaware A 86-3825535 (State or other jurisdiction of
incorporation or organization) A (L.R.S. Employer Identification No.) A A A 1901 W. 47th Place Kansas City, KS A
66205 (Address of principal executive offices) A (Zip Code) A (913)942-2300(Registranta€ ™ stelephone number,
including area code)A Securitiesregistered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:A Title of each class A Trading
Symbol(s) A Name of exchange on which registered Common Stock, par value $0.0001 per share A CING A The
Nasdaq Stock Market LLC (Nasdaq Capital Market) Warrants, exercisable for one share of common stock A CINGW A
The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC (Nasdaq Capital Market) A Indicateby check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all
reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeAct of 1934 during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2)has been subject to
such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes &~ No 4"A Indicateby check mark whether the registrant has
submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuantto Rule 405 of
Regulation S-T (A§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
registrantwas required to submit such files). Yes 4™’ No 4"A Indicateby check mark whether the registrant is a large
accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reportingcompany, or an emerging growth
company. See the definitions of d€celarge accelerated filer,a€ a€oeaccelerated filer,a€a€cesmaller reporting company,a€
and 4€ceemerging growth companya€ in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.A Large accelerated filer &” A Accelerated

fileraA~A A A A A Non-accelerated filer &~ A Smaller reporting company 8’ A A A A A A A A Emerging growth




company &~ A Ifan emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the
extended transition period for complyingwith any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to
Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act. 4"A Indicateby check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in
Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes &~ No 4™’A Asof November 6, 2024, 3,212,233 shares of the registranta€™s
common stock, $0.0001 par value, were issued and outstanding.AAA A A A CingulateInc.Form10-Q for the Quarter
Ended September 30, 2024A TABLEOF CONTENTSA A A Page A PART I A Item 1 Financial Statements 4 Item 2
Managementa€™s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 19 Item 3 Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 30 Item 4 Controls and Procedures 30 A A A A PARTII A Item 1 Legal
Proceedings 31 Item 1A Risk Factors 31 Item 2 Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds 32 Item 5
Other Information 32 Item 6 Exhibits 33 A A A Signatures 34 A 2 A A CAUTIONARYNOTE REGARDING FORWARD
LOOKING STATEMENTSA Thisreport contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21Eof the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, that involve
substantial risks and uncertainties. In some cases, you can identifyforward-looking statements by terms such as
a€cemay,a€ a€cewill, a€ a€ceshould,a€ a€oeexpect,a€ a€oeplan,a€a€eanticipate,a€ a€cecould,a€ d€weintend,a€
a€cetarget,a€ a€ceproject,a€ a€ceestimate,a€a€oebelieve,a€ a€mestimate,a€ d€cepredict,a€ a€cepotentiala€ or
a€oecontinuead€ or the negativeof these terms or other similar expressions intended to identify statements about the
future. These statements speak only as of the dateof filing this report with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC) and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and otherimportant factors that may cause our actual
results, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results,performance or achievements
expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. We have based these forward-looking statements largelyon our
current expectations and projections about future events and financial trends that we believe may affect our business,
financialcondition and results of operations. These forward-looking statements include, without limitation, statements
about the following:A A a— our ability to maintain compliance with the continued listing requirements of The Nasdaq
Stock Market LLC (Nasdaq); A A A A a— our lack of operating history and need for additional capital; A A A A a—
our plans to develop and commercialize our product candidates; A A A A 4— the timing of our planned clinical trials
for CTx-1301, CTx-1302, and CTx-2103; A A A A 4— the timing of our New Drug Application (NDA) submissions for
CTx-1301, CTx-1302, and CTx-2103; A A A A a4— the timing of and our ability to obtain and maintain regulatory
approvals for CTx-1301, CTx-1302, CTx-2103, or any other future product candidate; A A A A 4— the clinical utility of
our product candidates; A A A A 4— our commercialization, marketlng and manufacturing capabilities and strategy;
A A A A a— our ability to identify strategic partnerships; A A A A 4— our expected use of cash; A A 4— our
competitive position and projections relating to our competitors or our industry; A A 4— A our ability to identify,
recruit, and retain key personnel; A A A A 4— the impact of laws and regulations; A A A A 4— our expectations
regarding the time during which we will be an emerging growth company under the Jumpstart Our Business Startups
Act of 2012 (JOBS Act); A A A A 4— our plans to identify additional product candidates with significant commercial
potential that are consistent with our commercial objectives; and A 4— our estimates regarding future revenue and
expenses. A Becauseforward-looking statements are inherently subject to risks and uncertainties, some of which cannot
be predicted or quantified and someof which are beyond our control, you should not rely on these forward-looking
statements as predictions of future events. The eventsand circumstances reflected in our forward-looking statements
may not be achieved or occur and actual results could differ materiallyfrom those projected in the forward-looking
statements. You should refer to the a€ceRisk Factorsa€ section in this report andin our Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, filed with the SEC on April 1, 2024, for a discussionof important factors that
may cause our actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by our forward-looking statements.We
operate in an evolving environment and new risk factors and uncertainties may emerge from time to time. It is not
possible for managementto predict all risk factors and uncertainties. As a result of these factors, we cannot assure you
that the forward-looking statementsin this report will prove to be accurate. Except as required by applicable law, we do
not plan to publicly update or revise any forward-lookingstatements contained herein, whether as a result of any new
information, future events, changed circumstances or otherwise. You shouldreview the factors and risks and other
information we describe in the reports we will file from time to time with the SEC.A 3 A A PARTI 4€” FINANCIAL
INFORMATIONA Cingulatelnc.ConsolidatedBalance Sheets (unaudited)A A A September 30,A A December 31,A A A
2024A A 2023A ASSETSA AAAA AAA AA AAAA AAA Current assets:A AAAA AAA Cash and cash
equivalentsA $10,040,149A A $52,416A Other receivablesA A 2,247A A A 14,622A Prepaid expenses and other
current assetsA A 1,301,215A A A 511,556A Total current assetsA A 11,343,611A A A578,594A AA AAAA AAA
Property and equipment, netA A 2,066,515A A A 2,545,965A Operating lease right-of-use assetsA A 169,978A A

A 366,877A AA AAAA AAA Total assetsA A 13,580,104A A A 3,491,436A AA AAAA AAA LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERSa€™ EQUITYA AAAA AAA AA AAAA AAA Current liabilities:A AAAA AA A Accounts
payableA A 906,215A A A 5,199,106A Accrued expensesA A 402,152A A A 1,651,518A Note payableA A -A A

A 3,000,000A Finance lease liability, currentA A 8,806A A A 17,057A Operating lease liability, currentA

A 225,368A A A 358,085A Total current liabilitiesA A 1,542,541A A A 10,225,766A AA AAAA AAA Long-term
liabilities:A AAAA A A A Finance lease liability, net of currentA A -A A A 4,436A Operating lease liability, net of
currentA A-A A A 130,663A Total long-term liabilitiesA A -A A A 135,099A Total liabilitiesA A 1,542,541A A

A 10,360,865A AA AAAA AAA Stockholdersd€™ EquityA AAAA AAA Common Stock, $0.0001 par value;
240,000,000 shares authorized and 3,044,165 and 97,293 shares issued and outstanding as of September 30, 2024 and
December 31, 2023A A 305A A A 10A Preferred Stock, $0.0001 par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized and 0 shares
issued and outstanding as of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023A A -A A A -A Additional Paid-in-CapitalA

A 114,394,459A A A 86,074,004A Accumulated deficitA A (102,357,201)A A (92,943,443) Total stockholdersa€™
equityA A 12,037,563A A A (6,869,429) AA AAAA AAA Total liabilities and stockholdersa€™ equityA
$13,580,104A A $3,491,436A A Seenotes to consolidated financial statements.A 4 A

A CingulateInc.ConsolidatedStatements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss (unaudited)A A A 2024A A 2023A A
2024A A 2023A A A Three Months Ended September 30,A A Nine Months Ended September 30,A A A 2024A A
2023A A 2024A A 2023A Operating expenses:A AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA Research and developmentA
$1,428,504A A $3,923,852A A $5,116,582A A $10,508,395A General and administrativeA A 1,853,583A A

A 1,825,822A A A 4,319,902A A A 5,453,643A Operating lossA A (3,282,087)A A (5,749 674)A A (9,436 484)A

A (15,962, 038) AA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA Interest and other income (expense) netA A 50A483AA X
A (229,380)A A 22,726A A A (638,212) Loss before income taxesA A (3 231, 604)A AAA(5A979A < ) A (A 113, 258)A
A (16,600,250) Income tax benefit (expense)A AAA-AAA-AAA-AAAAAAA AAAA AAAA AAA Net



loss and comprehensive lossA $(3,231,604)A $(5,979,054)A $(9,413,758)A $(16,600,2500 AA AAAA AAAA
AAAA AAA Netloss per share of common stock, basic and dilutedA $(1.83)A $(72.60)A $(10.06)A $(278.84) A A
AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA Weighted average number of shares used in computing net loss per share of common
stock, basic and dilutedA A 1,766,362A A A 82,361A A A 936,118A A A 59,533A A Seenotes to consolidated financial
statements.A 5A A CingulateInc.ConsolidatedStatements of Stockholdersa€™ Equity (unaud1ted)A AA AAA AAA
AAA AAA AccumulatedAA AA AA Common StockA A AdditionalA A AccumulatedA A Other ComprehensiveA A

Stockholdersa€ TMA A A SharesA A AmountA A Paid-in- CapltalA A DeficitA A IncomeA A Equ1tyA Balance January 1,

$AAAAA 3 882,022A Activity for the three months to March 31,2023:A AAAA AAAA AAA
A A A Unrealized losses on available for sale investmentsA A-AA A-AA A-AA A-AA A-A AAAA . Stock-basec
compensation expenseA A-AA A-AA A204,479AA A-AA A-AA A204,479A NetlossA A-AA A-AA A-AA

A (4 004, 887)A A -A A A (4,004,887) Balance March 31, 2023A A 47,123A A $5A A $73,494,992A A $(73,413,383)A
$-A A $81,614A Activity for the three months to June 30, 2023:A A A RAA A AAA AAAA AA
Unrealized losses on available for sale investmentsA A 3,114AA A-AA A21
Stock-based compensation expenseA A-AA A-AA A 217,376AA A-AA A-AA A217,376A NetlossA A-AA A-AA
A-AA A (6,616, 309)A A-AA A (6,616, 309) Balance June 30, 2023A A 50,237A A $5AA $73,931,166A A

$(80,029,692)A $-A A $(6,098, 521) AA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA Activity for the three
months to September 30, 2023:A AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA Issuance of common stock in
connection with At the Market Offering and Purchase Agreement, net of feesA A 7,412AA A 1A A $1,621,938A A
AAAA AAAA A1,621,939A Issuance of common stock in connection with private placement with WFIAA

A 7,596A A AT1AA $999,999AA AAAA AAAA A1,000,000A Issuance of common stock and pre-funded warrants
sold for cash in public offering, net of feesA A 7,167A A A1AA A 3,310,550AA AAAA AAAA A3,310,551A
Issuance of pre-funded warrants in connection with the conversion of related party note payableA A-AA A-AA

A 3,949, 765AA AAAA AAAA A3949,765A Capital contribution in connection with conversion of related party
note payableA AAAA AAAA A1,862,735AA AAAA AAAA A1,862,735A Stock-based compensation expenseA
A-AA A-AA A236,251AA A-AA A-AA A236,251A NetlossA A-AA A-AA A-AA A (5979,0564)A A-AA

A (5,979,054) Balance September 30, 2023A A 72,412A A $8A A $85,912,404A A $(86,008,746)A $-A A $(96,334)
AA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA Balance January 1, 2024A A 97,293A A A10A A

$86 074,004A A $(92 943 443)A $-A A $(6,869,429) Activity for the three months to March 31, 2024: A AAAA
AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA Issuance of common stock in connection with At the Market Offering and
Purchase Agreement, net of feesA A 23,650A A A2AA A3,115282AA A-AA A-AA A3,115,284A Issuance of
common stock in public offering, net of feesA A 296,000A A A 30A A A 6,432,862AA A-AA A-AA A 6,432,892A
Issuance of pre-funded warrants in connection with the conversion of related party note payableA A-AA A-AA
A2,734,739AA A-AA A-AA A2,734,739A Capital contribution in connection with conversion of related party note
payableA A-AA A-AA A586,511AA A-AA A-AA A586,511A Issuance of restricted common stockA A 596A A A -
AA A24,024AA A-AA A-AA A24,024A Stock-based compensation expenseA A-AA A-AA A164,575AA A-AA
A-AA A164,575A NetlossA A-AA A-AA A-AA A(2,972,477)A A-AA A (2,972,477) Balance March 31, 2024A
A 417,539A A $42AA $99 131,997A A $(95 915 920)A $ A A $3,216,119A Activity for the three months to June 30,

2024:A AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AA A Issuance of common stock upon exercise of pre-funded
warrantsA A 86,334AA A9AA A(9A AAAA AAAA A-A Issuance of common stock in connection with At the
Market Offering and Purchase Agreement, net of feesA A 121,279A A A12AA A1,109,990AA A-AA A-AA
A1,110,002A Warrant inducementA A 143,958A A A 14A A A 1,614,549AA A-AA A-AA A 1,614,563A Issuance of
restricted common stockA A 11,652A A A1AA A98,433AA A-AA A-AA A 98,434A Stock-based compensation
expenseA A-AA A-AA A254,331AA A-AA A-AA A254,331A NetlossA A-AA A-AA A-AA A(3,209,677)A A -
A A A (3,209,677) Balance June 30, 2024A A 780,762A A $78A A $102,209,291A A $(99,125,597)A $-A A
$3,083,772A BalanceA A 780,762A A $78AA $102,209,291A A $(99,125, 597)A $-A A $3,083,772A Activity for the

three months to September 30, 2024:A AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA Issuance of common stock
upon exercise of pre-funded warrantsA A 16,498A A A2AA A (2JA AAAA AAAA A-A Share adjustment due to
fractional rounding of August 2024 reverse splitA A 130,602A A A13AA A(13)A AAAA AAAA A-A Issuance of
common stock in connection with At the Market Offering and Purchase Agreement, net of feesA A 2,116,303A A
A212AA A11,791,412AA A-AA A-AA A 11,791,624A Stock-based compensation expenseA A-AA A-AA

A 393,771AA A-AA A-AA A393,771A NetlossA A-AA A-AA A-AA A(3,231,604)A A-AA A (3,231,604)
Balance September 30, 2024A A 3,044,165A A $305A A $114,394,459A A $(102,357,201)A $-A A $12,037,563A
Balance A A 3,044,165A A $305A A $114,394,459A A $(102,357,201)A $-A A $12,037,563A A Seenotes to
consolidated financial statementsA 6 A A CingulateInc.ConsolidatedStatements of Cash Flows (unaudited)A A A
AAAA AAA AA Nine Months Ended September 30,A A A 2024A A 2023A Operating activities:A AAAA AAA
Net lossA $(9 413,758)A $(16 600,250) AdJustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operatlng activities:A
AAAA AAA DepreciationA A 492,788A A A 410,593A Stock-based compensatlonA A 935,135A A A 658,106A
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:A A AA A A A A Other receivablesA A 12,375A A A 228,596A Prepaid
expenses and other current assetsA A (789,659)A A 1,368,658A Operating lease right-of-use assetsA A 196,899A A
A 194,125A Trade accounts payable and accrued expensesA A (5,542,256)A A 1,517,952A Current portion of
operating lease liabilityA A (132,718)A A 13,428A Long-term portion of operating lease liabilityA A (130,663)A

A (263,380) Net cash used in operating activitiesA A (14,371,857)A A (12,472,172) AA AAAA AAA Investing

activities:A AAAA A A A Purchase of property and equipmentA A (13, 338)A A (37,136) Net cash used in investing
activitiesA A (13,338)A A (37,136) AA AAAA AA A Financing Activities:A AAAA AAA Proceeds from the
issuance of common stock and pre-funded common stock purchase warrants, net of feesA A 24,385,615A A

A 6,151,288A Proceeds from note payableA A-A A A 3,000,000A Principal payments on finance lease obligationsA

A (12,687)A A (11,943) Net cash prov1ded by financing activitiesA A 24,372,928A A A9,139,345A AA AAAA AAA
Cash and cash equivalents:A AAAA A AA Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equlvalentsA A 9,987,733A A

A (3,369,963) Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of yearA A 52,416A A A 5,356,276A Cash and cash equivalents
at end of periodA $10,040,149A A $1,986,313A AA AAAA AA A Cash payments:A AAAA AAA Interest paidA
$6,160A A $10,266A A Seenotes to consolidated financial statementsA 7 A A CINGULATEINC.Notesto Consolidated
Financial StatementsA (1) Nature of the Business and LiquidityA OrganizationA Cingulatelnc. (Cingulate, or the
Company), a Delaware corporation, is a biopharmaceutical company focused on the development of products utilizingits
drug delivery platform technology that enables the formulation and manufacture of once-daily tablets of multi-dose
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therapies, withan initial focus on the treatment of Attention Deficit/Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD). The Company is
developing two proprietary, first-linestimulant medications, CTx-1301 (dexmethylphenidate) and CTx-1302
(dextroamphetamine), for the treatment of ADHD intended for all patientsegments: children, adolescents, and adults.
CTx-1301 and CTx-1302 utilize a flexible core tableting technology with target product profiledesigned to deliver a
rapid onset and last the entire active day with a controlled descent of plasma drug level and have favorable
tolerability.The Company is progressing with the remaining clinical requirements for CTx-1301 and is targeting a New
Drug Application (NDA) for CTx-1301inmid-2025. In addition, the Company has a third product to treat anxiety, CTx-
2103, in a formulation stage.A Theconsolidated financial statements and notes for the periods ended September 30,
2024 and 2023, represent the full consolidation of Cingulateand its subsidiaries, including Cingulate Therapeutics LLC
(CTx) and all references to the Company represent this full consolidation.A LiquidityA TheCompany has incurred
operating losses and negative cash flows from operations since inception. As a pre-revenue entity, the Company
isdependent on the ability to raise capital to support operations until such time as the product candidates under
development are U.S.Food and Drug Administration (FDA) approved, manufactured, commercially available to the
marketplace and produce revenues. On September30, 2024, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately $10.0 million, and an accumulated deficit of approximately $102.4million. However, the Company will
need additional funding for operations and development. Management is evaluating various strategiesto obtain
additional funding, which may include additional offerings of equity, issuance of debt, or other capital sources,
includingpotential collaborations with other companies or other strategic transactions. Successful implementation of
these plans involves boththe Companya€™s efforts and factors that are outside its control, such as market factors and
FDA approval of product candidates.The Company can give no assurance that its plans will be effectively implemented
in such a way that they will sufficiently alleviateor mitigate the conditions and events noted above, which results in
substantial doubt about the Companya€™s ability to continue asa going concern within one year after the date that the
financial statements are issued. The accompanying consolidated financial statementshave been prepared on a going
concern basis, which contemplates the realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the normalcourse of
business. The consolidated financial statements do not reflect any adjustments that might result from the outcome of
this uncertainty.A (2)Summary of Significant Accounting PoliciesA (a)Basis of Presentation and Principles of
ConsolidationA Theaccompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (U.S.GAAP). The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
Cingulate and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All intercompany accountsand transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.A 8 A A (b) Unaudited Interim Financial InformationA Theaccompanying consolidated balance sheets as
of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive lossfor
the three and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, the consolidated statement of stockholdersa€™
equity forthe three and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, the consolidated statements of cash
flows for the nine-monthperiods ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, and the related interim disclosures are
unaudited. These unaudited consolidated financialstatements include all adjustments necessary, consisting of only
normal recurring adjustments, to fairly state the financialposition and the results of operations and cash flows for
interim periods in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Interim period results arenot necessarily indicative of results of
operations or cash flows for a full year or any subsequent interim period. The accompanyingconsolidated financial
statements should be read in conjunction with the Companya€™s 2023 audited consolidated financialstatements and
the notes thereto.A (c)Concentration of Credit RiskA TheCompany maintains cash equivalent deposits, which at various
times throughout the fiscal year exceeded the amounts insured by the FederalDeposit Insurance Corporation limit of
$250,000 (without regard to reconciling items). Management monitors the soundness of these financialinstitutions and
does not believe the Company is subject to any material credit risk relative to the uninsured portion of the

deposits.A (d)Impairment of Long-lived AssetsA TheCompany assesses the carrying value of its long-lived assets,
including property and equipment, as well as lease right of use (ROU) assets,when events or circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of such assets may not be recoverable. These events or changes in circumstancesmay include a
significant deterioration of operating results, changes in business plans, or changes in anticipated future cash flows.If
an impairment indicator is present, the Company evaluates recoverability by a comparison of the carrying amount of
the assets to futureundiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the assets. If the sum of the expected future
cash flows is less than the carryingamount, the Company would recognize an impairment loss. An impairment loss
would be measured by comparing the amount by which the carryingvalue exceeds the fair value of the long-lived asset
groups. No impairment was recognized during the nine-month periods ended September30, 2024 or 2023.A (e) Stock-
Based CompensationA TheCompany measures employee and director stock-based compensation expense for all stock-
based awards based on their grant date fair valueusing the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. For stock-based awards
with service conditions, stock-based compensation expense is recognizedover the requisite service period using the
straight-line method. Forfeitures are recognized as they occur. See additional informationin Note 10.A 9 A A (3)
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current AssetsA Prepaidexpenses and other current assets consisted of the following at
September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023:Scheduleof Prepaid ExpensesA and Other Current AssetsA A A
SeptemberA 30,A A December 31,A A A 2024A A 2023A Research and developmentA $1,088,696A A $183,452A
InsuranceA A 128,941A A A 31,302A Active pharmaceutical ingredientsA A 29,025A A A 97,324A Dues and
subscriptionsA A 20,092A A A -A Deferred capital raise costsA A 13,763A A A 178,780A OtherA A 20,698A A

A 20,698A Total prepaid expenses and other current assetsA $1,301,215A A $511,556A A (4) Property and
EquipmentA Propertyand equipment, net consisted of the following at September 30, 2024 and December 31,
2023:Scheduleof Property and EquipmentA A A EstimatedA AAA AA A A Useful LifeA September 30,A A
December 31,A A A (in years)A 2024A A 2023A EquipmentA 2-7A $4,358,260A A $4,321,816A Furniture and
fixturesA 7A A 145,754A A A 145,754A Computer equipmentA 5A A 46,994A A A 41,897A Leasehold
improvementsA 5A A 474,462A A A 471,505A Construction-in-process- equipmentA -A A 176,816A A A 207,976A
Property and equipment, grossA A A A 5,202,286A A A 5,188,948A Less: accumulated depreciationA A A

A (3,135,771)A A (2,642,983) Property and equipment, netA A A $2,066,515A A $2,545,965A A Depreciationexpense
was $492,788 and $410,593, respectively, for the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2024 and 2023.
Depreciation expense was$165,406 and $154,663, respectively, for the three-month periods ended September 30, 2024
and 2023.A (5) Accrued ExpensesA Accruedexpenses consisted of the following at September 30, 2024 and December
31, 2023:Scheduleof Accrued ExpensesA A A September 30,A A December 31,A A A 2024A A 2023A Research and
developmentA $202,741A A $155,220A Professional feesA A 91,961A A A 213,922A State franchise taxesA

A 80,000A A A 120,570A Employee compensationA A -A A A 593,022A InterestA A-A A A 290,000A CIP-



EquipmentA A-AA A 155,800A InsuranceA A-AA A 56,088A OtherA A 27,450A A A 66,896A Total accrued
expensesA $402,152A A $1,651,518A A 10 A A (6) ContingenciesA TheCompany may, from time to time, be subject
to legal proceedings and claims arising in the ordinary course of business and otherwise.A substantial legal liability
against us could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.A TheCompany
records legal costs associated with loss contingencies as incurred and establishes reserves when those matters present
materialloss contingencies that management determines to be both probable and reasonably estimable in accordance
with ASC 450, Contingencies.If a range of loss is estimated, and some amount within that range appears to be a better
estimate than any other amount within thatrange, then that amount is accrued. If no amount within the range can be
identified as a better estimate than any other amount, we accruethe minimum amount in the range. These amounts are
not reduced by amounts that may be recovered under insurance or claims against thirdparties, but undiscounted
receivables from insurers or other third parties may be accrued separately if recovery is considered
probable.Managementa€™s judgment is required related to loss contingencies because the outcomes are difficult to
predict, and the ultimateresolution may differ from our current analysis. The Company revises accruals in light of new
information. While it is not possible topredict the outcome of loss contingencies with certainty, management is of the
opinion that adequate provision for potential losses associatedwith any such matters has been made in the financial
statements. No accruals for loss contingencies were recorded in the consolidatedbalance sheets as of September 30,
2024 or 2023.A (7)Related Party Note PayableA InAugust 2022, the Company received $5.0 million of debt financing
from Werth Family Investment Associates LLC (WFIA). Peter Werth, managerof WFIA, is a member of the
Companya€™s Board of Directors. The promissory note, dated August 9, 2022, was unsecured with interestaccruing at
15% per annum. In May 2023, the Company received an additional $3.0 million of debt financing from WFIA by
amending and restatingthe note to increase the principal amount to $8.0 million. All other terms of the note remained
the same.A OnSeptember 8, 2023, the Company and CTx entered into a note conversion agreement with WFIA,
pursuant to which WFIA agreed to convert theoriginal principal amount of $5.0 million under the note plus all accrued
interest on the original principal, or $5,812,500, by issuingpre-funded warrants to purchase 28,493 shares of the
Companya€™s common stock at a conversion price per pre-funded warrant of $204.00.The closing price of the
Companya€™s common stock on Nasdaq on September 8, 2023, was $138.60 per share. The pre-funded warrantshad
no expiration date and were exercisable immediately at an exercise price of $0.0024 per share, to the extent that after
giving effectto such exercise, WFIA and its affiliates would beneficially own, for purposes of Section 13(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934,as amended (Exchange Act), no more than 19.99% of the outstanding shares of
common stock of the Company.A OnJanuary 25, 2024, the Company and CTx entered into another note conversion
agreement with WFIA, pursuant to which WFIA agreed to convertthe remaining principal amount of the note payable of
$3.0 million plus all accrued interest, or $3,287,500 by issuing pre-funded warrantsto purchase 57,254 shares of the
Companya€™s common stock at a conversion price per pre-funded warrant of $57.42. The closing priceof the
Companya€™s common stock on Nasdaq on January 24, 2024, was $52.20 per share. The pre-funded warrants had no
expiration dateand were exercisable immediately at an exercise price of $0.0012 per share, to the extent that after
giving effect to such exercise, WFIA and its affiliates would beneficially own, for purposes of Section 13(d) of the
Exchange Act, no more than 19.99% of the outstandingshares of common stock of the Company. In March of 2024, the
Company issued to WFIA an additional pre-funded warrant to purchase 588shares of common stock as a result of an
error in the interest calculation, on the same form and at the same conversion price as theJanuary pre-funded
warrants.A WFIAexercised all of its pre-funded warrants in April 2024, as described in Note 9.A TheCompany
considered ASC 470-60, Troubled Debt Restructurings by Debtors, in accounting for the debt conversions. The
differencebetween the fair value of the pre-funded warrants issued and the carrying value of the debt and accrued
interest settled in each transactionwas recognized as a capital contribution in the Statement of Stockholdersa€™ Equity
based on the related party nature of the counterpartyA 11 A A (8)Stockholdersa€™ EquityA TheCompany has
authorized 240,000,000shares of $0.0001par value common stock and 10,000,000 sharesof $0.0001 par value preferred
stock at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, of which 3,044,165 and 97,293 shares of common stockwere
issued and outstanding, respectively. The Company has not issued any shares of preferred stock.A Theholders of
common stock are entitled to one vote for each share of common stock. In the event of any voluntary or involuntary
liquidation,dissolution or winding up of the Company, after the payment or provision for payment of all debts and
liabilities of the Company, theholders of common stock shall be entitled to share in the remaining assets of the
Company available for distribution, if any. Holdersof the shares of common stock are entitled to dividends when, as and
if declared by the Board of Directors.A ReverseStock SplitsA OnNovember 30, 2023, the Company completed a one-for-
twenty reverse stock split (2023 Reverse Stock Split), which reduced the number ofshares of the Companya€™s
common stock that were issued and outstanding immediately prior to the effectiveness of the 2023 ReverseStock Split.
The number of shares of the Companya€™s authorized common stock was not affected by the 2023 Reverse Stock Split
andthe par value of the Companya€™s common stock remained unchanged at $0.0001 per share. No fractional shares
were issued in connectionwith the 2023 Reverse Stock Split.A OnAugust 9, 2024, the Company completed a one-for-
twelve reverse stock split (2024 Reverse Stock Split), which reduced the number of sharesof the Companya€™s
common stock that were issued and outstanding immediately prior to the effectiveness of the 2024 Reverse StockSplit.
The number of shares of the Companya€™s authorized common stock was not affected by the 2024 Reverse Stock Split
and the parvalue of the Companya€™s common stock remained unchanged at $0.0001 per share. No fractional shares
were issued in connection withthe 2024 Reverse Stock Split.A Exceptwhere disclosed, all amounts related to number of
shares and per share amounts have been retrospectively restated in these financialstatements to reflect the 2023
Reverse Stock Split and the 2024 Reverse Stock Split.A (9)Securities IssuancesA Atthe Market OfferingA InJanuary
2023, the Company entered into the At-the-Market Agreement (ATM Agreement) with H.C. Wainwright & Co., LLC
(HCW) pursuantto which the Company could issue and sell, from time to time, shares of the Companya€™s common
stock having an aggregate offeringprice of up to $4.97 million in at-the-market offerings sales. HCW acts as sales agent
and is paid a 3% commission on each sale underthe ATM Agreement. The Companya€™s common stock is sold at
prevailing market prices at the time of the sale, and, as a result, priceswill vary.A OnMarch 18, 2024, the Company
increased the maximum aggregate offering price of the shares of the Companya€™s common stock issuableunder the
ATM Agreement from $4.97 million to $8.47 million and filed a prospectus supplement for an aggregate of $3.5 million.
In connectionwith the filing of the prospectus supplement, on March 17, 2024, the Company received a waiver from the
purchaser in the February 20240ffering (as defined below) under the securities purchase agreement, dated February 2,
2024, by and between the Company and such purchaser.In consideration of the waiver set forth therein, the Company
agreed to lower the exercise price of the Series A Warrants to purchaseup to an aggregate of 28,855 shares of common



stock and Series B Warrants to purchase up to an aggregate of 14,428 shares of common stockto $13.56, which
warrants were previously issued by the Company to such purchaser on September 13, 2023 and to extend the exercise
termof the Series A Warrants to March 17, 2029 and the term of the Series B Warrants to March 17, 2026. The
modifications to the warrantshad no impact on the consolidated financial statements.A 12 A A OnAugust 19, 2024, the
Company increased the maximum aggregate offering price of the shares of the Companya€™s common stock
issuableunder the ATM Agreement from $8.47 million to $11.33 million and filed a prospectus supplement for an
aggregate of $2.86 million.A OnSeptember 3, 2024, the Company increased the maximum aggregate offering price of
the shares of the Companya€™s common stock issuableunder the ATM Agreement from $11.33 million to $15.2 million
and filed a prospectus supplement for an aggregate of $3.87 million.A Duringthe three months ended March 31, 2024,
the Company sold 23,650 shares of common stock under the ATM Agreement, for net proceeds of $3,115,284.During
the three months ended June 30, 2024, the Company sold 31,858 shares of common stock under the ATM Agreement,
for net proceedsof $354,259. During the three months ended September 30, 2024, the Company sold 902,300 shares of
common stock under the ATM Agreement,for net proceeds of $5,804,393.A PurchaseAgreement with Lincoln

ParkA OnApril 24, 2023, the Company entered into a purchase agreement (the LP Purchase Agreement) and a
registration rights agreement (the RegistrationRights Agreement) with Lincoln Park Capital Fund, LLC (Lincoln Park).
Pursuant to the terms of the LP Purchase Agreement, Lincoln Parkhas agreed to purchase from the Company up to $12
million of the Companya€™s common stock subject to certain limitations and satisfactionof the conditions set forth in
the LP Purchase Agreement. Pursuant to the terms of the Registration Rights Agreement, the Company filedwith the
SEC registration statements to register for resale under the Securities Act 2,685,417 shares of common stock that have
beenor may be issued to Lincoln Park under the LP Purchase Agreement.A Duringthe three months ended March 31,
2024, the Company sold 89,420 shares of common stock under the LP Purchase Agreement, for net proceedsof
$755,703. No shares of common stock were sold under the LP Purchase Agreement during the three months ended June
30, 2024. Duringthe three months ended September 30, 2024, the Company sold 1,092,337 shares of common stock
under the LP Purchase Agreement, for netproceeds of $6,081,814.A PublicOfferingA OnFebruary 2, 2024, the Company
completed a public offering (the February 2024 Offering) pursuant to which the Company issued 114,583 sharesof its
common stock and accompanying Series A and Series B warrants at a combined price of $24.00 per share, and pre-
funded warrantsto purchase up to an aggregate of 197,917 shares of its common stock and accompanying Series A and
Series B warrants at a combined purchaseprice of $23.988 per pre-funded warrant, which represents the public
offering price for the common stock less the $0.0012 per share exerciseprice per share for each pre-funded warrant.
The pre-funded warrants were exercisable at any time after the date of issuance and haveno expiration date. The
holders of pre-funded warrants may not exercise the warrants if the holder, together with its affiliates,
wouldbeneficially own more than 4.99% (or, at the election of the holder, 9.99%) of the number of shares of common
stock outstanding immediatelyafter giving effect to such exercise. Each share of common stock and each pre-funded
warrant were sold along with one Series A and 0.5Series B warrants. The February 2024 Offering resulted in gross
proceeds to the Company of $7.5 million before deducting $750,950 ofplacement agent fees and other offering
expenses. As of September 30, 2024, all of the pre-funded warrants had been exercised.A 13 A

A WarrantInducementA OnJune 28, 2024, the Company entered into an inducement offer letter agreement (the June
2024 Warrant Inducement), in which certain holders(Holders) of certain of its existing warrants to purchase 265,625
shares of the Companya€™s common stock issued to the Holders inconnection with the February 2024 Offering (the
February 2024 Warrants) agreed to exercise for cash their February 2024 Warrants at areduced exercise price of $7.02
per share. In consideration for the exercise of the February 2024 Warrants, the Holders received, inaddition to the
reduced exercise price, new Series C common stock purchase warrants to purchase an aggregate of 354,167 shares of
theCompanya€™s common stock and new Series D common stock purchase warrants to purchase an aggregate of
177,083 shares of the Companya€ ™ scommon stock. The June 2024 Warrant Inducement is considered a modification of
the existing warrants under ASC Subtopic 815-40, Derivativesand Hedging, Contracts in Entitya€™s Own Equity. This
modification is consistent with the equity issuance classification underASC Subtopic 815-40 as the reason for the
modification was to induce the holders of the existing warrants to exercise their warrants,which raised equity capital
and generated net proceeds to the Company of approximately $1.6 million, after deducting the placement agentfees and
other offering expenses payable by the Company. The modified warrants were classified as equity instruments before
and afterthe modification, and the modification is directly attributable to an equity offering. The Company recognized
the effect of modificationof approximately $2.0 million as an equity issuance cost and accounting effect of the
inducement is recognized in the Statement of Stockholdersa€™ Equity. The Company received net proceeds of $1.6
million on the closing of the June 2024 Warrant Inducement, which occurred on Julyl, 2024.A 10)Stock-Based
CompensationA InSeptember 2021, the Companya€™s board of directors and stockholders adopted the 2021 Equity
Incentive Plan (the 2021 Plan), whichprovides for the grant of incentive stock options and non-qualified stock options to
purchase shares of the Companya€™s common stock,stock appreciation rights, restricted stock units, restricted or
unrestricted shares of common stock, performance shares, performanceunits, incentive bonus awards, other stock-
based awards and other cash-based awards. No awards may be made under the 2021 Plan on orafter September 24,
2031, but the 2021 Plan will continue thereafter while previously granted awards remain outstanding.A Atthe
Companya€™s June 2024 annual meeting, shareholders approved an amendment to the 2021 Plan to increase the
number of shares ofcommon stock authorized for issuance thereunder by 104,167 shares to 125,577. As of September
30, 2024, 34,352 shares of common stockwere available for issuance under the 2021 Plan. The number of shares of
common stock available for issuance under the 2021 Plan willautomatically increase on January 1st of each year until
the expiration of the 2021 Plan, in an amount equal to 5% percent of the totalnumber of shares of our common stock
outstanding on December 31st of the preceding calendar year, on a fully diluted basis, unless theboard of directors
takes action prior thereto to provide that there will not be an increase in the share reserve for such year or thatthe
increase in the share reserve for such year will be of a lesser number of shares of common stock than would otherwise
occur. Theshares of common stock underlying any awards that are forfeited, cancelled, held back upon exercise or
settlement of an award to satisfythe exercise price or tax withholding, repurchased or are otherwise terminated by the
Company under the 2021 Plan will be added backto the shares of common stock available for issuance under the 2021
Plan.A TheCompany recorded stock-based compensation expense of $812,691 and $658,105 during the nine months
ended September 30, 2024 and 2023,respectively. The Company recorded stock-based compensation expense of
$393,786 and $235,251 during the three months ended September30, 2024 and September 30, 2023, respectively. As of
September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, there was $1,219,737 and $1,278,981, respectively,of unrecognized
compensation cost related to nonvested share-based compensation arrangements granted under the 2021 Plan, which is



expectedto be recognized over the next one to four years.A 14 A A Asummary of option activity under the Plan during
the three and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2024 is as follows:Summaryof Option Act1v1tyA AA AAA

AAA Weighted- AverageA A AggregateA AA AAA Weighted- AverageA A Remaining ContractualA A IntrinsicA

A A SharesA A Exercise PriceA A Term (years)A A ValueA Outstanding at January 1, 2024A A 4,82 1A A AAAA

AAAA AAA GrantedA A15994AA $AAAAAAA14.15AA A993AA A-A ExercisedA A-AA AAAA AAAA
A A A Forfeitures or expirationsA A (628)A AAAA AAAA AAA Outstanding at March 31, 2024A A 20,187A A
AAAA AAAA AAA GrantedA A 69,038AA A13.44AA A9.95A A A-A ExercisedA A-AA AAAA AAAA

A A A Forfeitures or expirationsA A-AA AAAA AAAA AAA Outstanding at June 30, 2024A A 89,225A A
AAAA AAAA AAA GrantedA A2,000AA A5.04AA A10.0AA A-A ExercisedA A-AA AAAA AAAA AAA
Forfeitures or expirationsA A-AA AAAA AAAA AAA Outstanding at September 30, 2024A A 91,225AA AAAA

AAAA AAA AA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA Vested and expected to vest at September 30, 2024A

A91,225AA AAAA AAAA AAA Exercisable at September 30, 2024A A 40,677AA AAAA AAAA AAA

A TheCompanya€™s stock options issued qualify for equity accounting treatment under ASC 718, Compensation- Stock
Compensation,and are measured at fair value as of their grant date accordingly. The fair value of the options were
estimated using a Black-Scholesmodel. The assumptions that the Company used to estimate the grant-date fair value of
stock options granted to employees during the nine-monthperiod ending September 30, 2024 were as follows, shown on
a weighted average basis:Scheduleof Fair Value AssumptionA A A SeptemberA 30,A A A 2024A Risk-free interest
rateA A 4.26% Expected term (in years)A A 5.45A Expected volatilityA A 1.46A Expected dividend yieldA A 0%

A Risk-Freelnterest Rate: The Company based the risk-free interest rate over the expected term of the options based on
the constant maturityof U.S. Treasury securities with similar maturities as of the date of grant.A ExpectedTerm: The
expected term represents the period that the options granted are expected to be outstanding and is determined using
thesimplified method (based on the mid-point between the vesting dates and the end of the contractual

term.)A ExpectedVolatility: The Company uses an average historical stock price volatility of comparable public
companies within the biotechnologyand pharmaceutical industry that were deemed to be representative of future stock
price trends as the Company does not have sufficienttrading history for its common stock. The Company will continue to
apply this process until a sufficient amount of historical informationregarding volatility of its own stock price becomes
available.A ExpectedDividend Yield: The Company has not paid and does not anticipate paying any dividends in the near
future. Therefore, the expecteddividend yield was zero.A Thegrant-date fair value of options granted during the three
months ended September 30, 2024 was $5.04 and the grant date fair value ofthe options granted during the nine
months ended September 30, 2024 ranged from $4.00 to $14.00.A 15 A A Theaggregate intrinsic value of stock
options is calculated as the difference between the exercise price of the stock options and the fairvalue of the
Companya€™s common stock. The fair value per share of common stock was $5.04 as of September 30, 2024, and
$91.80 asof December 31, 2023, based upon the closing price of our common stock on the Nasdaq Capital Market on
those dates or the last tradingdate prior to those dates if those dates were not a trading date.A (11)Common Stock
Purchase WarrantsA Forthe 312,500 shares of common stock and pre-funded warrants issued in the February 2024
Offering, the Company issued Series A warrantsto purchase up to 312,500 shares of common stock and Series B
warrants to purchase up to 156,250 shares of common stock. The Series Aand Series B warrants have an exercise price
of $24.00 per share and became exercisable on the effective date of stockholder approvalof the shares issuable
pursuant to the warrants. The Series A warrants have a five-year term and the Series B warrants have a two-yearterm
from the initial exercise date of February 5, 2024.A TheCompany evaluated the pre-funded warrants and the Series A
and B warrants for liability or equity classification in accordance with theprovisions of ASC Topic 480, Distinguishing
Liabilities from Equity, and ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging, and determinedthat equity treatment was
appropriate. The Company valued the pre-funded warrants to purchase 197,917 shares of common stock based ontheir
issuance dgte fair value of $24.00. As of September 30, 2024, all of the pre-funded warrants had been

exercised.A Inconnection with the February 2024 Offering, the Company issued placement agent warrants to purchase
up to 12,500 shares of common stock.The placement agent warrants have an exercise price of $30.00 per share. These
warrants have a five-year term ending February 2, 2029.A TheSeries A, Series B and placement agent warrants issued
in the February 2024 Offering were valued using a Black-Scholes model with a risk-freerate of 4.0%-5.0%, the
respective terms of five and two years, and a volatility of 1.56-1.83. The estimated volatility of the

Companya€ ™ scommon stock at the date of measurement is based on an average historical stock price volatility of
comparable public companies withinthe biotechnology and pharmaceutical industry that were deemed to be
representative of future stock price trends as the Company doesnot have sufficient trading history for its common stock.
The risk-free rate is based on the expected term of the warrants based on theconstant maturity of U.S. Treasury
securities with similar maturities as of the date of grant. The expected term has been estimated usingthe contractual
term of the warrants.A FairValue of the Warrants to Additional Paid in CapitalA AA AAA PercentAA AA AA

FairA A of TotalA A AmountA A A ValueA A Fair ValueA A AllocatedA Common StockA $2,750,000A A A 26.50%A
$1,987,500A Pre-Funded WarrantsA A 4,750,000A A A 45.77%A A 3,432,750A Series A, B and Placement Agent
WarrantsA A 2,878,126A A A 27.73%A A 2,079,750A TotalA $10,378,126A A A 100.00%A $7,500,000A A Certainof
the Series A and Series B warrants issued in connection with the February 2024 Offering were exercised as part of the
June 2024 WarrantInducement as described in Note 9. In addition, Series C and Series D warrants were issued as part
of the June 2024 Warrant Inducement.The June 2024 Warrant Inducement closed on July 1, 2024, on which date the
shares relating to the exercise of the Series A and B warrantsand the Series C and D warrants were settled. The
Company evaluated the Series C and D warrants for liability or equity classificationin accordance with the provisions of
ASC Topic 480, and ASC Topic 815, and determined that equity treatment was appropriate.A 16 A A Thefollowing
table summarizes the Companya€™s outstanding common stock purchase warrants as of September 30,

2024A :Scheduleof Warrants and Rights OutstandingA AA AAA A A A Issuance DateA A Issuance DateA A A
Number ofA A ExerciseA A Fair ValueA A Fair ValueA A A WarrantsA A PriceA A per WarrantA A TotalA December
2021 Initial Public Offering WarrantsA A 19,965A A $1,440.00A A $1,144.80A A $22,855,932A December 2021
Placement Agent WarrantsA A 868A A $1,800.00A A $1,113.48A A A 966,501A September 2023 Public Offering
Series A WarrantsA A 28,855A A $13.56A A $129.84A A A 3,746,533A September 2023 Public Offering Series B
WarrantsA A 14,428A A $13.56A A $101.04A A A 1,457,805A September 2023 Placement Agent WarrantsA
A1,443A A $172.80A A $127.56A A A 184,069A February 2024 Public Offering Series A WarrantsA A 135,417A A
$24.00A A $14.04A A A 1,901,255A February 2024 Public Offering Series B WarrantsA A 67,708A A $24.00A A
$11.88A A A 804,371A February 2024 Placement Agent WarrantsA A 12,500A A $30.00A A $13.80A A A 172,500A
June 2024 Series C WarrantsA A 354,167A A $7.020A A $3.24A A A 1,147,501A June 2024 Series D WarrantsA



A177,083A A $7.020A A $2.40A A A 424,999A July 2024 Placement Agent WarrantsA A 21,250A A $8.780A A
$2.23A A A 47,388A Balance- September 30, 2024A A 833,684AA AAAA AAAA $33,708,854A A TheCompany
has accounted for these warrants as equity-classified instruments under ASC Subtopic 815-40, as they are indexed to
theCompanya€™s common stock, and they meet all other conditions for equity classification. The gross proceeds of the
February 2024 Offeringwas allocated to the common stock and common stock purchase warrants using the relative fair
value method shown as follows. Fair valueof the warrants was recorded to Additional Paid-in-Capital on the
Companya€™s balance sheet.A (12)Income TaxesA A Cingulatelnc. is taxed as a C corporation under the Internal
Revenue Code. Cingulate Inc. records deferred income taxes to reflect the impactof temporary differences between the
recorded amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and such amounts asmeasured by tax laws
and regulations. CTx is a wholly-owned disregarded entity of Cingulate Inc., and all of the activity for CTx, alongwith its
wholly-owned subsidiary Cingulate Works Inc., is included in the calculation of the current and deferred tax assets and
liabilitiesfor Cingulate Inc. No deferred income tax benefit or expense was recorded for the three-month periods ended
September 30, 2024 and 2023or the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, for federal or state
income taxes.A Incometax expense differed from the expected expense computed by applying the U.S. Federal income
tax rate as follows:A Schedule of Effective Income Tax Rate Reconciliation A A Three Months Ended September 30,
2024A A Three Months Ended September 30, 2023A A Nine Months Ended September 30, 2024A A Nine Months
Ended September 30, 2023A Federal income tax benefit at statutory rateA $(678,639)A $(1,255,601)A $(1,976,891)A
$(3,486,052) State income tax benefitA A (233,562)A A (330,642)A A (579,614)A A (917,994) Permanent
differencesA A 3,233A A A6,154A A A 9,307A A A 14,457A Change in valuation allowanceA A 1,832,122A A

A 2,218,188A A A 3,500,000A A A 5,089,875A Research and development tax creditsA A (972,372)A A (620, 630)A

A (972, 372)A A (620,630) OtherA A 49,218A A A (17,469)A A 19,570A A A (79,656) Total income tax expenseA $-
AA $-AA $-AA $-A A 17A A Evaluatingthe need for, and amount of, a valuation allowance for deferred tax assets
often requires significant judgment and extensive analysisof all available evidence on a jurisdiction-by-jurisdiction basis.
Such judgments require the Company to interpret existing tax law andother published guidance as applied to its
circumstances. As part of this assessment, the Company considers both positive and negativeevidence about its
profitability and tax situation. A valuation allowance is provided if, based on available evidence, it is more likelythan not
that all or some portion of a deferred tax asset will not be realized. The Company determined that it was more likely
than notthat it would not realize its deferred tax assets, based on historical levels of income and future forecasts of
taxable income, amongother items. The Company recorded a valuation allowance of its net deferred tax assets totaling
$16,121,058 as of September 30, 2024and $12,631,033 at December 31, 2023, the current year portion which was
recorded as a component of income tax expense on the accompanyingconsolidated statements of operations and other
comprehensive loss.A TheCompany files income tax returns in the U.S. federal and various state jurisdictions. The
Companies are not subject to U.S. federal andstate income tax examinations by tax authorities for years before

2018.A TheCompany follows the provisions of FASB ASC 740, Income Taxes, to evaluate uncertain tax positions. This
topic prescribes a recognitionthreshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expected to betaken in a tax return. The Company has not identified any
material uncertain tax positions requiring recognition in the consolidatedfinancial statements as of September 30, 2024
or December 31, 2023.A (13)Subsequent EventsA Managementevaluated events that occurred subsequent to
September 30, 2024, through November 7, 2024, which is the date the interim financial statementswere

issued.A Subsequentto September 30, 2024, the Company sold 213,522 shares of common stock under the LP Purchase
Agreement, for net proceeds of $899,991.A OnOctober 15, 2024, the Company increased the maximum aggregate
offering price of the shares of the Companya€™s common stock issuableunder the ATM Agreement from $15.2 million
to $19.7 and filed a prospectus supplement for an aggregate of $8.34 million.A 18 A A Item2. Managementa€™s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.A Thefollowing discussion and analysis of our
financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the consolidatedfinancial statements
and related notes included elsewhere in this report. Some of the information contained in this discussion and analysisor
set forth elsewhere in this report, including information with respect to our plans and strategy for our business,
includes forward-lookingstatements that involve risks and uncertainties. You should review the 4€ceRisk Factorsa€
section of our Annual Report on Form10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023 (Form 10-K) and in this report, as
well as disclosures in this report and our other reportsfiled with the SEC, for a discussion of important factors that
could cause actual results to differ materially from the results describedin or implied by the forward-looking statements
contained in the following discussion and analysis.A OverviewA Weare a biopharmaceutical company using our
proprietary Precision Timed ReleaseTM (PTRTM) drug delivery platformtechnology to build and advance a pipeline of
next-generation pharmaceutical products designed to improve the lives of patients sufferingfrom frequently diagnosed
conditions characterized by burdensome daily dosing regimens and suboptimal treatment outcomes. With an
initialfocus on the treatment of Attention Deficit/Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD) and anxiety, we are identifying and
evaluating additional therapeuticareas where our PTR technology may be employed to develop future product
candidates. Our PTR platform incorporates a proprietary ErosionBarrier Layer (EBL) designed to allow for the release
of drug substance at specific, pre-defined time intervals, unlocking the potentialfor once-daily, multi-dose tablets. We
believe there remains a significant, unmet need within the current treatment paradigm for trueonce-daily ADHD
stimulant medications with lasting duration and a superior side effect profile to better serve the needs of
patientsthroughout their entire active-day.A Sinceinception in 2012, our operations have focused on developing our
product candidates, organizing and staffing our company, business planning,raising capital, establishing our intellectual
property portfolio and conducting clinical trials. We do not have any product candidatesapproved for sale and have not
generated any revenue. We have funded our operations through public and private capital raised. Cumulativecapital
raised from these sources, including debt financing, was approximately $106.4 million as of September 30,

2024.A Wehave incurred significant losses since our inception. Our ability to generate product revenue sufficient to
achieve profitability willdepend on the successful development and commercialization of one or more of our product
candidates. Our net losses were $3.2 millionand $6.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023,
respectively. See a€eResults of Operationsa€ belowfor an explanation of the fluctuations in our net losses. As of
September 30, 2024, we had an accumulated deficit of $102.4 million.A Weexpect to continue to incur significant
expenses and operating losses in the near term, as we:A A a4— seek regulatory approval for CTx-1301; A A A A a—
continue research and development activities for our existing and new product candidates, primarily for CTx-1301; A A
A A a4— continue manufacturing activities, primarily relating to CTx-1301; A A A A 4— seek licensing partners and/or

outsource commercial infrastructure to support sales and marketing for CTx-1301; and A A A A a4— operate as a



public company. A 19 A A Ourability to generate product revenue will depend on the successful development,
regulatory approval and eventual commercialization ofone or more of our product candidates. Until such time as we can
generate significant revenue from product sales, if ever, we expectto finance our operations through the sale of equity,
debt financings, or other capital sources, including potential collaborations withother companies or other strategic
transactions. Adequate funding may not be available to us on acceptable terms, or at all. If we failto raise capital or
enter into such agreements as and when needed, we may have to significantly delay, scale back or discontinue
thedevelopment and commercialization of our product candidates.A 2024Reverse Stock SplitA OnAugust 9, 2024, we
completed a one-for-twelve reverse stock split (2024 Reverse Stock Split), which reduced the number of shares of
ourcommon stock that were issued and outstanding immediately prior to the effectiveness of the 2024 Reverse Stock
Split. The number of sharesof our authorized common stock was not affected by the 2024 Reverse Stock Split and the
par value of our common stock remained unchangedat $0.0001 per share. No fractional shares were issued in
connection with the 2024 Reverse Stock Split. All share and per share amountsin this report have been adjusted to
reflect the 2024 Reverse Stock Split.A Clinical, Manufacturing and Business UpdateA CTx-1301:We have designed our
clinical program for CTx-1301 (dexmethylphenidate), our lead investigational product candidate for the treatmentof
ADHD, based on U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) feedback regarding our CTx-1301 clinical plan, and
longstanding guidance onthe streamlined approval pathway under Section 505(b)(2) of the Federal Food, Drug, and
Cosmetic Act.A Weinitiated two CTx-1301 Phase 3 clinical studies in pediatric and adolescent patients- a fixed dose
study and a dose-optimized onsetand duration study in a laboratory classroom setting in the third quarter of 2023.
Based upon written communication with the FDAthat further conduct of these pediatric and adolescent studies is not
required for the submission of an NDA, we closed enrollment onboth Phase 3 trials. We are performing the data
consolidation and analytical activities for these trials. In addition, per FDAguidance, we initiated a food effect study
utilizing CTx-13014€™ s highest dosage strength, 50-mg, in September 2024 and isexpected to be completed by the end
of 2024. Appropriate data will be included in the NDA, targeted for a mid-2025submission.A Wewere issued a European
patent for CTx-1301 for the treatment of ADHD on August 14, 2024. The patent application includes up to 30European
territories, including the United Kingdom.A CTx-2103:We have embarked on a program to develop CTx-2103
(buspirone), for the treatment of anxiety, which is one of the most common mentalhealth concerns in the United States.
We completed a formulation study in which the pharmacokinetics were evaluated for this trimodaltablet providing three
precisely timed doses of buspirone versus one immediate release dose. In addition, scintigraphic imaging
visualizedtransit of the tablets through the gastrointestinal tract to confirm both the site and onset of release, which
will then be correlatedwith pharmacokinetic data to establish the full release profile of the CTx-2103 formulation. Based
on the pharmacokinetic profile seenin the data, CTx-2103 achieved a triple release of buspirone. These results provided
the critical information required to allow us torequest a Pre-IND meeting with the FDA to discuss the design of our
clinical and regulatory program for CTx-2103 which occurred in thefourth quarter of 2023. We received input from the
FDA regarding the regulatory pathway for CTx-2103, and the design of clinical studiesfor filing of an IND. Based on this
FDA feedback, we believe that we can seek and win approval of CTx-2103 under the 505(b)(2) pathway,which typically
requires less time and resources than the 595(1))(}) full NDA pathway. Additional resources will be required to complete
the development of this product candidate.A 20 A A CTx-1302:We plan to initiate the clinical plan for CTx-1302
(dextroamphetamine), our second investigational asset for the treatment of ADHD,pending additional capital
resources.A Wecontinue to evaluate strategic partnerships under which we would license CTx-1301 in the United States
and/or internationally. InMarch 2023, we entered into a joint commercialization agreement (the Commercialization
Agreement) with Indegene, Inc. (Indegene) in the United States.We are able to utilize Indegene for commercialization
services for CTx-1301, including marketing, sales, market access anddistribution, on a fee for service, at our discretion.
A SecuritiesIssuancesA PublicOfferingA OnFebruary 2, 2024, we entered into agreements, including a Securities
Purchase Agreement, with investors, pursuant to which we issued114,583 shares of our common stock, pre-funded
warrants to purchase up to an aggregate of 197,917 shares of our common stock, SeriesA warrants to purchase up to
312,500 shares of our common stock and Series B warrants to purchase up to 156,250 shares of our commonstock (the
a€eFebruary 2024 Offeringa€). The February 2024 Offering closed on February 6, 2024. The combined purchase
priceper share of common stock and accompanying Series A and Series B warrants was $24.00. The combined purchase
price per prefunded warrantand accompanying Series A and Series B warrants was $23.99, which represents the public
offering price per share of common stock andaccompanying warrants less the $0.0012 per share exercise price for each
prefunded warrant. The pre-funded warrants are exercisable atany time after the date of issuance and have no
expiration date. The holder of pre-funded warrants may not exercise the warrants if theholder, together with its
affiliates, would beneficially own more than 4.99% (or, at the election of the holder, 9.99%) of the numberof shares of
common stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to such exercise. The Series A warrants have an exercise
priceof $24.00 per share, were exercisable immediately, and will expire five years after the issuance date, and the
Series B warrants havean exercise price of $24.00 per share, were exercisable immediately, and will expire two years
after the issuance date. We received grossproceeds of approximately $7.5 million, before deducting $750,950 of
placement agenta€™ s fees and other offering expenses, pursuantto the February 2024 Offering. As of September 30,
2024, all pre-funded warrants had been exercised. Holders of Series A warrants topurchase 177,084 shares and Series
B warrants to purchase 88,500 shares gave notice of exercise in connection with the June 2024 WarrantInducement (as
defined below) on June 28, 2024.A WarrantInducementA OnJune 28, 2024, we entered into an inducement offer letter
agreement (June 2024 Warrant Inducement), pursuant to which certain holders(Holders) of certain of our existing
warrants to purchase 265,625 shares of common stock issued to the Holders on February 6, 2024 (February2024
Warrants) agreed to exercise for cash their February 2024 Warrants at a reduced exercise price of $7.02 per share. In
considerationfor the exercise of the February 2024 Warrants, the Holders received new Series C common stock
purchase warrants to purchase an aggregateof 354,167 shares of common stock and new Series D common stock
purchase warrants to purchase an aggregate of 177,083 shares of commonstock. Such new warrants have an exercise
price of $7.02 per share. We received net proceeds of $1.6 million from the closing of theJune 2024 Warrant
Inducement, which occurred on July 1, 2024.A ATMAgreementA Weentered into an At The Market Offering Agreement
(ATM Agreement) with H.C. Wainwright & Co., LLC (HCW), as sales agent, inJanuary 2023 as amended in May 2023,
pursuant to which we may offer and sell, from time to time through HCW, shares of our commonstock for aggregate
proceeds of up to $19.7 million based on prospectus supplements filed with the SEC through the date of thisreport
(upon the terms and subject to the conditions and limitations set forth in the ATM Agreement). In the three months
endedSeptember 30, 2024, we sold 902,300 shares of common stock under the ATM Agreement, for net proceeds of
approximately $5.8 million,after deducting $0.2 million of compensation to HCW and other administration fees. In the



nine months ended September 30, 2024, wesold 957,808 shares of common stock under the ATM Agreement, for net
proceeds of approximately $9.3 million, after deducting $0.3million of compensation to HCW and other administration
fees.A 21 A A EquityLine of CreditA InApril 2023, we entered into a purchase agreement (Lincoln Park Agreement)
with Lincoln Park Capital Fund LLC (Lincoln Park). Pursuantto the Lincoln Park Agreement, Lincoln Park has agreed to
purchase from us up to an aggregate of $12.0 million of common stock (uponthe terms and subject to the conditions and
limitations set forth in the Lincoln Park Agreement) from time to time and at our sole discretionover the 36-month term
of the Lincoln Park Agreement. During the quarter ended September 30, 2024, we sold 1,092,337 shares of
commonstock under the Lincoln Park Agreement, for net proceeds of approximately $6.1 million. During the nine
months ended September 30, 2024,we sold 1,181,757 shares of common stock under the Lincoln Park Purchase
Agreement, for net proceeds of approximately $6.8 million. Subsequentto September 30, 2024, we sold 213,522 shares
of common stock under the Lincoln Park Purchase Agreement, for net proceeds of approximately$0.9

million.A Componentsof Operating ResultsA RevenueA Sinceinception, we have not generated any revenue and do not
expect to generate any revenue from the sale of products in the near future.If our development efforts for our product
candidates are successful and result in regulatory approval, or if we enter into collaborationor license agreements with
third parties, we may generate revenue in the future from a combination of product sales or payments
fromcollaboration of license agreements.A OperatingExpensesA Researchand Development ExpensesA Researchand
development expenses consist of costs incurred in the discovery and development of our product candidates, and
primarily include:A A 4— expenses incurred under third party agreements with contract research organizations
(CROs), and 1nvest1gat1ve sites, that conducted or will conduct our clinical trials and a portion of our pre-clinical
activities; A A 4— costs of raw materials, as well as manufacturing cost of our materials used in clinical trials and
other development testing; A A A A 4— expenses, including salaries and benefits of employees engaged in research
and development activities; A A A A a4— costs of manufacturing equipment, depreciation and other allocated
expenses; and A A A A 4— fees paid for contracted regulatory services as well as fees paid to regulatory authorities
including the FDA for review and approval of our product candidates. A Weexpense research and development costs as
incurred. Costs for external development activities are recognized based on an evaluation ofthe progress to completion
of specific tasks using information provided to us by our vendors. Payments for these activities are basedon the terms of
the individual agreements, which may differ from the pattern of costs incurred, and are reflected in our
consolidatedfinancial statements as prepaid or accrued costs.A Researchand development activities are central to our
business model. We expect that our research and development expenses will continue to increasefor the foreseeable
future as we continue clinical development for our product candidates, as well as adding additional PTR product
candidatesto our pipeline. As products enter later stages of clinical development, they will generally have higher
development costs than thosein earlier stages of clinical development, primarily due to the increased size and duration
of later-stage clinical trials. Historically,our research and development costs have primarily related to the development
of CTx-1301. As we advance CTx-1301, CTx-1302, and CTx-2103,as well as identify any other potential product
candidates, we will continue to allocate our direct external research and developmentcosts to the products. We expect
to fund our research and development expenses from our current cash and cash equivalents and any futureequity or
debt financings, or other capital sources.A 22 A A Generaland Administrative ExpensesA Generaland administrative
expenses consist primarily of salaries and related costs for our employees in administrative, executive and
financefunctions. General and administrative expenses also include professional fees for legal, accounting, audit, tax
and consulting services,insurance, office, and travel expenses.A Weexpect that our general and administrative expenses
will increase in the future as we increase our general and administrative headcountto support our growing operations
including the potential commercialization of our product candidates. We have experienced, and willcontinue to
experience, increased expenses associated with being a public company, including costs of accounting, audit, legal,
regulatoryand tax compliance services; director and officer insurance; and investor and public relations

costs.A Interestand other income (expense), netA Interestand other income (expense), net consisted of interest expense
on our related party notes payable until the last of those obligationswere converted to equity in the first quarter of
2024, and interest earned on our cash and cash equivalents, including money market funds.The primary objective of our
investment policy is liquidity and capital preservation.A CriticalAccounting Policies and Significant Judgments and
EstimatesA Ourconsolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (U.S. GAAP). The preparationof the consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affectthe reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidatedfinancial statements and the reported amounts of
expenses during a reporting period. Actual results could differ from estimates.A Adiscussion of these policies can be
found in the 4€ceCritical Accounting Policies and Significant Judgments and Estimatesa€ sectionof our Form 10-K.
There have been no changes in our application of critical accounting policies since December 31, 2023.A Resultsof
OperationsA Comparisonof the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023A Thefollowing table summarizes our
results of operations for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023:A A A Three Months EndedA A AAA
%A A A September 30,A A IncreaseA A IncreaseA (in thousands)A 2024A A 2023A A (Decrease)A A (Decrease)A
Operating Expenses:A AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA Research and developmentA $1,428A A $3,924A A $(2,496)A
A (63.6)% General and administrativeA A 1,854A A A 1,826AA A28A A A 1.5% Operating LossA A (3,282)A

A (5,750)A A (2,468)A A (42.9)% Interest and other income (expense), netA A 50A A A (229)A A279A A A121.8%
Net LossA $(3,232)A $(5,979)A $(2,189)A A (36.6)% A 23 A A Researchand development expensesA Thefollowing
table summarizes our research and development (R&D) expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and
2023:A A A Three Months EndedAA AAA %A AA September 30,A A IncreaseA A IncreaseA (in thousands)A
2024A A 2023A A (Decrease)A A (Decrease)A Clinical operationsA $398A A $2,346A A $(1,948)A A (83.0)% Drug
manufacturing and formulationA A 533A A A 817A A A (284)A A -34.8% Personnel expensesA A 441A A A 644A A

A (203)A A (31.5)% Regulatory costsA A56AA A117A A A (61)A A -52.1% Total research and development
expensesA $1,428A A $3,924A A $(2,496)A A (63.6)% A R&Dexpenses were $1.4 million for the three months ended
September 30, 2024, a decrease of $2.5 million or 63.6% from the three months endedSeptember 30, 2023. This change
was primarily the result of decreased clinical activity in the three months ended September 30, 2024as compared to the
same period in 2023. During the third quarter of 2023, we incurred significant costs relating to two Phase 3 studiesfor
CTx-1301, the fixed dose pediatric and adolescent safety and efficacy study and the pediatric dose optimization and
duration study.Enrollment in these two studies was closed in early 2024 and we are progressing with the remaining
close-out and analytical activitiesrequired for an NDA submission. Manufacturing costs also decreased, as the activity in
2023 was more significant for the manufactureof clinical supply for the Phase 3 studies. In 2024, manufacturing activity



included the completion of registration batches of CTx-1301.The decrease in personnel costs is the result of lower
headcount and the cost containment measures, which were implemented in late 2023in order to conserve cash,
including salary reductions ranging from 5-55% for all employees. This decrease was offset by the reinstatementof 2023
base salaries for all employees in September 2024.A Generaland administrative expensesA Thefollowing table
summarizes our general and administrative (G&A) expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and
2023:A A A Three Months EndedAA AAA %A AA September 30,A A IncreaseA A IncreaseA (in thousands)A
2024A A 2023A A (Decrease)A A (Decrease)A Personnel expensesA $515A A $672A A $(157)A A (23.4)% Legal and
professional feesA A 828A A A511AA A317AA A 62.0% OccupancyA A 76A A A 144A A A (68)A A (47.2)%
InsuranceA A 236A A A398A A A (162)A A (40.7)% OtherA A 199A A A101AA A98A A A 97.0% Total general and
administrative expensesA $1,854A A $1,826A A $28A A A 1.5% A TotalG&A expenses were $1.9 million for the three
months ended September 30, 2024, an increase of 1.5% from the three months ended September30, 2023. This is
primarily the result of an increase in legal and professional fees, offset by a decrease in personnel expenses
andinsurance. The increase in legal and professional fees was due to the increased use of consultants in connection
with the special shareholdersmeetings, the 2024 Reverse Stock Split and capital raising activity. This increase was
offset by a decrease in personnel expenses primarilydue to lower headcount and the cost containment measures, which
we implemented in late 2023 in order to conserve cash, including salaryreductions ranging from 5-55% for all
employees. 2023 base salaries for all employees were reinstated in September 2024. In addition,there was a decrease in
the annual directorsd€™ and officersa€™ insurance premium from 2023 to 2024.A 24 A A Interestand other income
(expense), netA Thefollowing table summarizes interest and other income (expense), net for the three months ended
September 30, 2024 and 2023:A A A Three Months EndedAA AAA AA AA September 30,AA AAA %A (in
thousands)A 2024A A 2023A A IncreaseA A IncreaseA Interest and other income (expense), netA $50A A $(229)A
$279A A A 121.8% A Totalinterest and other income (expense), net for the three months ended September 30, 2023,
primarily relates to interest incurred on outstandingnotes payable, offset by interest earned on invested balances. Total
interest and other income for the three months ended September 30,2024 relates to interest earned on invested
balances, resulting from the increase in the Companya€™s cash balance relating to capitalraise activities in the third
quarter of 2024.A Comparisonof the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023A Thefollowing table summarizes
our results of operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023:A A A Nine Months EndedA A
AAA %A AA September 30,A A IncreaseA A IncreaseA (in thousands)A 2024A A 2023A A (Decrease)A A
(Decrease)A Operating Expenses:A AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA Research and developmentA $5,116A A
$10,508A A $(5,392)A A (51.3)% General and administrativeA A 4,320A A A 5,454A A A (1,134)A A (20.8)%
Operating LossA A (9,436)A A (15,962)A A (6,526)A A (40.9)% Interest and other income (expense), netA A 23A A

A (638)A A661A A A103.6% Net LossA $(9,413)A $(16,600)A $(5,865)A A (35.3)% A Researchand development
expensesA Thefollowing table summarizes our R&D expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and
2023:A A A Nine Months EndedAA AAA %A AA September 30,A A IncreaseA A IncreaseA (in thousands)A
2024A A 2023A A (Decrease)A A (Decrease)A Clinical operationsA $1,541A A $5,071A A $(3,530)A A (69.6)% Drug
manufacturing and formulationA A 2,336A A A 3,254A A A (918)A A -28.2% Personnel expensesA A 1,091A A

A 1,902A A A (811)A A (42.6)% Regulatory costsA A 148A A A281A A A (133)A A-47.3% Total research and
development expensesA $5,116A A $10,508A A $(5,392)A A (51.3)% A R&Dexpenses were $5.1 million for the nine
months ended September 30, 2024, a decrease of $5.4 million or 51.3% from the nine months endedSeptember 30,
2023. This change was primarily the result of decreased clinical activity in the nine months ended September 30, 2024
ascompared to the same period in 2023. During the first nine months of 2023, we incurred significant costs relating to
two Phase 3 studiesfor CTx-1301, the fixed dose pediatric and adolescent safety and efficacy study and the pediatric
dose optimization and duration study.Enrollment in these two studies was closed in early 2024 and we are progressing
with the remaining close-out and analytical activitiesrequired for an NDA submission. Manufacturing costs also
decreased, as the activity in 2023 was more significant for the manufactureof clinical supply for the Phase 3 studies. In
2024, manufacturing activity included the completion of registration batches of CTx-1301.The decrease in personnel
costs is the result of lower headcount and the cost containment measures, which were implemented in late 2023in
order to conserve cash, including salary reductions ranging from 5-55% for all employees. This decrease was offset by
the reinstatementof 2023 base salaries for all employees in September 2024.A 25 A A Generaland administrative
expensesA Thefollowing table summarizes our G&A expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and
2023:AA A A Nine Months EndedA A AAA %A A A September 30,A A IncreaseA A IncreaseA (in thousands)A
2024A A 2023A A (Decrease)A A (Decrease)A Personnel expensesA $1,332A A $2,023A A $(691)A A (34.2)% Legal
and professional feesA A 1,638A A A 1,495A A A 143A A A 9.6% OccupancyA A 251A A A 396A A A (145)A

A (36.6)% InsuranceA A 718A A A1,173A A A (455)A A (38.8)% OtherA A381AA A367AA A14A A A 3.8% Total
general and administrative expensesA $4,320A A $5,454A A $(1,134)A A (20.8)% A TotalG&A expenses were $4.3
million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, a decrease of $1.1 million or 20.8% from the nine monthsended
September 30, 2023. This is primarily the result of a decrease in personnel expenses and insurance. The decrease in
personnel expensesis the result of lower headcount and the cost containment measures which we implemented in late
2023 in order to conserve cash, includingsalary reductions ranging from 5-55% for all employees. 2023 base salaries for
all employees were reinstated in September 2024. In addition,there was a decrease in the annual directorsa€™ and
officersa€™ insurance premium from 2023 to 2024. The decrease was offsetby an increase in legal and professional
fees due to the increased use of consultants in connection with the special shareholders meetings,the 2024 Reverse
Stock Split and capital raising activity.A Interestand other income (expense), netA Thefollowing table summarizes
interest and other income (expense), net for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023:A A A Nine Months
EndedAA AAA %A AA September 30,A A IncreaseA A IncreaseA (in thousands)A 2024A A 2023A A

(Decrease)A A (Decrease)A Interest and other income (expense), netA $23A A $(638)A $(661)A A 103.6%

A Totalinterest and other income (expense), net for the nine months ended September 30, 2023, primarily relates to
interest incurred on outstandingnotes payable, offset by interest earned on invested balances. Total interest and other
income for the nine months ended September 30,2024 relates to interest earned on invested balances, resulting from
the increase in the Companya€™s cash balance relating to capitalraise activities.A CashFlowsA A A Nine Months
EndedA A A September 30,A A A 2024A A 2023A Net cash (used in) operating activitiesA $(14,372)A $(12,472) Net
cash (used in) investing activitiesA A (13)A A (37) Net cash (used in) financing activitiesA $24,373A A $9,139A Net
increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalentsA $9,988A A $(3,370) A 26 A A CashFlows from Operating
ActivitiesA Netcash used in operating activities was $14.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024. Cash
used in operating activities wasprimarily due to the use of funds in our operations to develop our product candidates



resulting in a net loss of $9.4 million, priorto the effects of two noncash items, stock-based compensation expense of
$0.9 million and depreciation expense of $0.5 million. Changesin operating assets and liabilities included a decrease in
trade accounts payable and accrued expenses of $5.5 million primarily dueto the payment of vendor balances in the
first quarter of 2024 with the cash proceeds from the issuance of common stock pursuant to ourATM Agreement in
January 2024 and the issuance of equity in the February 2024 Offering.A Netcash used in operating activities was $12.5
million for the nine months ended September 30, 2023. Cash used in operating activities wasprimarily due to the use of
funds in our operations to develop our product candidates resulting in a net loss of $16.6 million, priorto the effects of
two noncash items, stock-based compensation expense of $0.7 million and depreciation expense of $0.4 million.
Changesin operating assets and liabilities included a decrease in miscellaneous receivables of $0.2 million primarily due
to collection of anamount recoverable on an insurance claim which had been recorded as a receivable as of December
31, 2022, a decrease of prepaid expensesand other current assets of $1.4 million primarily due to the utilization of a
deposit made to our contract manufacturing organization(CMO) for the build out of our new manufacturing suite and
the utilization of deposits made to our CROs, and an increase in trade accountspayable and accrued expenses of $1.5
million due to increased clinical and manufacturing amounts resulting from increased developmentactivity, an increase
in interest accrued due to the WFIA NoteA A and an increase in legal fees payable relating to legal activityincurred
primarily in connection with capital raise activities.A CashFlows from Investing ActivitiesA Netcash used in investing
activities for both the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 was primarily related to the purchase
ofequipment to support our research and development.A CashFlows from Financing ActivitiesA Netcash provided by
financing activities for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2024 was related to the cash proceeds from the
issuanceof common stock pursuant to the ATM Agreement, the Lincoln Park Agreement, the February 2024 Offering
and the June 2024 Warrant Inducement.A Netcash provided by financing activities for the nine months ended
September 30, 2023 was primarily related to gross proceeds of approximately$4.0 million from the capital raise in
September 2023, gross proceeds of approximately $1.0 million from the WFIA Private Placement andproceeds from the
issuance of shares of common stock pursuant to the Lincoln Park Agreement and the ATM Agreement. In addition, we
received$3.0 million from the 2023 WFIA Debt FinancingA A .A Liquidityand Capital ResourcesA Sourcesof

LiquidityA Sinceour inception in 2012 through September 30, 2024, we have not generated any revenue and have
incurred significant operating losses andnegative cash flow from our operations.A InFebruary 2024, we received gross
proceeds of approximately $7.5 million, before deducting $750,950 of placement agenta€™s fees andother offering
expenses in the February 2024 Offering.A OnJuly 1, 2024, we received net proceeds of approximately $1.6 million from
the closing of the June 2024 Warrant Inducement.A Inthe three months ended September 30, 2024, we sold 902,300
shares of common stock under the ATM Agreement, for net proceeds of approximately$5.8 million, after deducting $0.2
million of compensation to HCW and other administration fees. In the nine months ended September 30,2024, we sold
957,808 shares of common stock under the ATM Agreement, for net proceeds of approximately $9.3 million, after
deducting$0.3 million of compensation to HCW and other administration fees.A 27 A A Duringthe three months ended
September 30, 2024, we sold 1,092,337 shares of common stock under the Lincoln Park Purchase Agreement, for
netproceeds of $6,081,814. During the nine months ended September 30, 2024, we sold 1,181,757 shares of common
stock under the Lincoln ParkPurchase Agreement, for net proceeds of approximately $6.8 millionA . Subsequent to
September 30, 2024, we sold 213,522 shares ofcommon stock under the Lincoln Park Purchase Agreement, for net
proceeds of approximately $0.9 million.A Asof September 30, 2024, we had cash and cash equivalents of $10 million.
We believe our cash will satisfy our capital needs into thethird quarter of 2025 under our current business plan. We are
targeting to file our NDA submission for CTx-1301 in mid-2025. We willneed additional capital to advance our other
programs and commercialization efforts. While we aware of the clinical andmanufacturing requirements and estimated
costs for an NDA submission of CTx-1301, it is difficult to predict spending for additionalproduct candidates prior to
obtaining FDA approval. Moreover, changing circumstances may cause us to expend cash significantlyfaster than we
currently anticipate, and we may need to spend more cash than currently expected because of circumstances beyond
ourcontrol. Our policy is to invest any cash in excess of our immediate requirements in investments designed to
preserve the principalbalance and provide liquidity while producing a modest return on investment. Accordingly, our
cash equivalents are investedprimarily in money market funds which are currently providing only a minimal return
given the current interest rateenvironment.A Weexpect to continue to incur losses from operations for at least the next
several years as we continue to develop our product candidates,primarily CTx-1301 and seek marketing approval and,
subject to obtaining such approval, the eventual commercialization of our productcandidates. If we obtain marketing
approval for our product candidates, we will incur significant sales, marketing and outsourced manufacturingexpenses.
In addition, we expect to incur additional expenses to add operational, financial and information systems and personnel,
includingpersonnel to support our planned product commercialization efforts. We also expect to incur significant costs
to comply with corporategovernance, internal controls and similar requirements applicable to us as a public
company.A Ourfuture use of operating cash and capital requirements will depend on many forward-looking factors,
including the following:A A A4— the cost and timing of manufacturing the clinical supply of our product candidates; A
A A A a— the initiation, progress, timing, costs and results of clinical trials for our product candidates; A A A A 4—
the clinical development plans we establish for each product candidate; A A A A a— the number and characteristics
of product candidates that we develop or may in-license; A A A A 4— the terms of any collaboration or license
agreements we may choose to execute; A A A A 4— the outcome, timing and cost of meetmg regulatory requirements
established by the FDA or other comparable foreign regulatory authorities; A A A A a— the cost of filing, prosecuting,
defending and enforcing our patent claims and other intellectual property rights; A A A A 4— the cost of defending
intellectual property disputes, including patent infringement actions brought by third parties against us; A A A A a—
the cost and timing of the implementation of commercial scale manufacturing activities; and A A A A 4— the cost and
timing of outsourcing our commercialization efforts, including, sales, marketing and distribution capabilities for any
product candidates for which we may receive regulatory approval in regions where we choose to commercialize our
products. A 28 A A Tocontinue to grow our business over the longer term, we plan to commit substantial resources to
research and development, including clinicaltrials of our product candidates, and other operations and potential
product acquisitions and in-licensing. We have evaluated and expectto continue to evaluate a wide array of strategic
transactions as part of our plan to acquire or in-license and develop additional productsand product candidates to
augment our internal development pipeline. Strategic transaction opportunities that we may pursue could
materiallyaffect our liquidity and capital resources and may require us to incur additional indebtedness, seek equity
capital or both. In addition,we may pursue development, acquisition or in-licensing of approved or development
products in new or existing therapeutic areas or continuethe expansion of our existing operations. Accordingly, we



expect to continue to opportunistically seek access to additional capital tolicense or acquire additional products,
product candidates or companies to expand our operations, or for general corporate purposes.Strategic transactions
may require us to raise additional capital through one or more public or private debt or equity financings orcould be
structured as a collaboration or licensing arrangement. We are actively seeking a strategic pharmaceutical partnership
underwhich we would license CTx-1301 in the United States, internationally, or both. In March 2023, we entered into a
Joint CommercializationAgreement with Indegene. Should we be unable to identify an appropriate pharmaceutical
partnership, if we receive FDA approval for CTx-1301,Indegene would provide commercialization services for CTx-1301,
including marketing, sales, market access and distribution, on a feefor service basis.A Ifwe raise additional funds by
issuing equity securities, our stockholders will experience dilution. Debt financing, if available, wouldresult in increased
fixed payment obligations and may involve agreements that include covenants limiting or restricting our ability totake
specific actions, such as incurring additional debt, making capital expenditures or declaring dividends. Any debt
financing or additionalequity that we raise may contain terms, such as liquidation and other preferences that are not
favorable to us or our existing stockholders.If we raise additional funds through collaboration and licensing
arrangements with third parties, it may be necessary to relinquish valuablerights to our technologies, future revenue
streams or product candidates or to grant licenses on terms that may not be favorable to us.Adequate funding may not
be available to us on acceptable terms, or at all. If we fail to raise capital or enter into such agreementsas and when
needed, we may have to significantly delay, scale back or discontinue the development and commercialization of our
productcandidates.A ContractualObligationsA Thefollowing summarizes our contractual obligations as of September 30,
2024 that will affect our future liquidity.A Weentered into a patent and know-how licensing agreement with BDD
Pharma Limited in August 2018. See a€eltem 1. Business a€“ MaterialAgreementsa€ section of our Form 10-K for a
description of this agreement. We are required to pay BDD Pharma certain amounts inconnection with clinical trial and
regulatory milestones. The first milestone payment of $250,000 was paid in February 2023 upon dosingof the first
patient in the Phase 3 adult onset and duration study for CTx-1301. Additional payments will become due upon
completionof certain milestones as defined in the agreement.A Weentered into agreements with vendors to complete
the data consolidation and analysis for the two CTx-1301 Phase 3 clinical studies inpediatric and adolescent patients for
which we closed enrollment in early 2024 based on FDA guidance regarding our clinical program. Totalestimated cost
of these agreements is $1.8 million.A Weentered into an agreement with a CRO on August 22, 2024 to complete the
final required study for CTx-1301, a fast fed studyutilizing our highest dosage strength, 50mg. Total estimated cost of
this agreement is $1.5 million.A 29 A A GoingConcernA Sinceinception we have been engaged in organizational
activities, including raising capital and research and development activities. We havenot generated revenues and have
not yet achieved profitable operations, nor have we ever generated positive cash flow from operations.There is no
assurance that profitable operations, if achieved, could be sustained on a continuing basis. We are subject to those
risksassociated with any pre-clinical stage pharmaceutical company that has substantial expenditures for research and
development. There canbe no assurance that our research and development projects will be successful, that products
developed will obtain necessary regulatoryapproval, or that any approved product will be commercially viable. In
addition, we operate in an environment of rapid technologicalchange that is largely dependent on the services of our
employees and consultants. Further, our future operations are dependent on thesuccess of our efforts to raise
additional capital. These uncertainties raise substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a goingconcern for one
year after the issuance date of our financial statements. The accompanying consolidated financial statements have
beenprepared on a going concern basis. The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments to reflect
the possible futureeffects on the recoverability and classification of assets or the amounts and classification of liabilities
that may result from thepossible inability of the company to continue as a going concern, which contemplates the
continuation of operations, realization of assetsand liquidation of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. We have
incurred a net loss for the three months ended September 30,2024 and 2023 and had accumulated losses of $102.4
million since inception to September 30, 2024. We anticipate incurring additionallosses until such time, if ever, that we
can generate significant revenue from our product candidates currently in development. Our sourcesof capital have
included private capital raises in various classes of units of CTx prior to the Reorganization Merger, the issuance
ofequity securities in connection with our initial public offering (IPO), public offerings, including the February 2024
Offering, salesof common stock under our ATM Agreement and Lincoln Park Agreement, a private placement with
WFIA, the WFIA Note A A which wassubsequently converted to equity, and the June 2024 Warrant Inducement.
Additional capital will be needed by us to fund our operations,to complete development of and to commercially develop
our product candidates. There is no assurance that such capital will be availablewhen needed or on acceptable
terms.A JOBSActA OnApril 5, 2012, the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 ( JOBS Act) was signed into law.
The JOBS Act contains provisions that,among other things, reduce certain reporting requirements for an a€ceemerging
growth company.a€ As an a€eemerging growthcompany,a€ we are electing to take advantage of the extended
transition period afforded by the JOBS Act for the implementation ofnew or revised accounting standards, and as a
result, we will comply with new or revised accounting standards on the relevant dates onwhich adoption of such
standards is required for emerging growth companies.A Subjectto certain conditions set forth in the JOBS Act, as an
d€eemerging growth company,a€ we are not required to, among other things, (i) provide an auditora€™s attestation
report on our system of internal controls over financial reporting pursuant to Section 404, (ii) provide all of the
compensation disclosure that may be required of non-emerging growth public companies under the Dodd-Frank
WallStreet Reform and Consumer Protection Act, (iii) comply with any requirement that may be adopted by the Public
Company Accounting OversightBoard regarding mandatory audit firm rotation or a supplement to the auditora€™s
report providing additional information about theaudit and the financial statements (auditor discussion and analysis),
and (iv) disclose certain executive compensation-related itemssuch as the correlation between executive compensation
and performance and comparisons of the chief executive officera€™s compensationto median employee compensation.
These exemptions will apply until the fifth anniversary of the completion of our IPO or until we nolonger meet the
requirements for being an 4€ceemerging growth company,a€ whichever occurs first.A Item3. Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures About Market RiskA Notapplicable.A Item4. Controls and Procedures.A Evaluationof Our
Disclosure ControlsA Wemaintain a system of disclosure controls and procedures that is designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed in the reportsthat we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the 4€ceExchange Acta€) is recorded, processed,summarized and reported within the time periods specified
in the SECa€™ s rules and forms and that such information is accumulatedand communicated to the our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timelydecisions regarding
required disclosure. A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable,



notabsolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, afterevaluating the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act)as of September 30, 2024, have concluded that our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of September 30, 2024.A 30 A A Evaluationof Changes in Internal Control over Financial
ReportingA Therewere no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act)that occurred during the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2024 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallyaffect, our internal control over financial reporting.A PARTII
d€” OTHER INFORMATIONA Item1. Legal Proceedings.A SeePart I, Item 1, Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements, Note 6 4€“ Contingencies, of this report.A Item1A. Risk Factors.A Ourbusiness is subject to substantial
risks and uncertainties. Investing in our securities involves a high degree of risk. You should carefullyconsider the risk
factors in Part I, Item 1A of our Form 10-K, together with the information contained elsewhere in this report,
includingPart I, Item 1 a€ceFinancial Statementsa€ and Part I, Item 2. a€ceManagementa€™s Discussion and Analysis
of FinancialCondition and Results of Operations,a€ and in our other SEC filings in evaluating our business. These risks
and uncertainties couldmaterially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects
for growth, and the value of an investmentin our securitiqs.A Exceptas set forth below, there were no material changes
to the risk factors previously disclosed in our Form 10-K.A Ourfailure to maintain compliance with Nasdaga€™s
continued listing requirements could result in the delisting of our securities fromNasdaq, and the price of our common
stock and/or warrants and our ability to access the capital markets could be negatively impacted.A Ourcommon stock
and warrants are currently listed for trading on The Nasdaq Capital Market. We must satisfy the continued listing
requirementsof Nasdaq to maintain the listing of our securities on The Nasdaq Capital Market.A OnMay 16, 2023, we
received a notice from the Listing Qualifications Staff (Staff) of Nasdaq stating that we no longer complied with
theminimum stockholdersa€™ equity requirement of $2.5 million under the Nasdaq Listing Rule 5550(b)(1) (Minimum
Stockholdersa€ ™ Equity Rule) for continued listing. We submitted a plan of compliance to Nasdaq on June 30, 2023. On
July 28, 2023, Nasdaq notified usthat it had granted an extension until November 13, 2023 to regain compliance with
the Minimum Stockholdersa€™ Equity Rule, conditionedupon achievement of certain milestones included in the plan of
compliance previously submitted to Nasdaq, including a plan to raise additionalcapital. On November 14, 2023, we
received a letter from Nasdaq indicating that, based upon our non-compliance with the Minimum

Stockholdersa€™ Equity Rule, the Staff had determined to delist our securities from Nasdaq, subject to our request for a
hearing before the Nasdaq HearingsPanel Panel).A OnDecember 26, 2023, we received an additional letter from the
Staff indicating that, based upon the resignation of three members of ourboard of directors on December 12, 2023 and
December 13, 2023, we no longer compiled with the independent director, audit committee,compensation committee
and independent director oversight of director nominations requirements as set forth in Nasdaq Listing Rule 5605.We
timely requested a hearing before the Panel, which was held on February 13, 2024. On February 22, 2024, the Panel
notified us that(i) as a result of the appointment of three independent board members on February 12, 2024, we had
regained compliance with the boardcomposition requirements of Nasdaq set forth in Nasdaq Listing Rule 5605 and (ii)
it granted our request for an exception to evidencecontinued compliance with the Minimum Stockholdersa€™ Equity
Rule through May 13, 2024. On May 21, 2024, we were formally notifiedthat the Panel determined that we had
regained compliance with the Minimum Stockholdersa€™ Equity Rule. Pursuant to Nasdaq ListingRule 5815(d)(4)(A),
we will be subject to a discretionary panel monitor through May 21, 2025 (Panel Monitor). If, within that one-
yearmonitoring period, we fail to maintain compliance with any Nasdaq continued listing requirement, the Staff will
issue a Delist DeterminationLetter and we will have an opportunity to request a new hearing with the initial Panel or a
newly convened Hearings Panel if the initialPanel is unavailable. Notwithstanding Nasdaq Listing Rule 5810(c)(2), we
will not be permitted to provide the Staff with a plan of compliancewith respect to any deficiency that arises during the
one-year monitoring period, and the Staff will not be permitted to grant additionaltime for us to regain compliance with
respect to any deficiency.A 31 A A OnJuly 28, 2023, we received a notice from Nasdaq indicating that we were not in
compliance with the requirement to maintain a minimumbid price of $1.00 per share for continued listing on Nasdaq
(Minimum Bid Price Rule). We were provided a compliance period of 180 calendardays from the date of the notice, or
until January 24, 2024, to regain compliance with the Minimum Bid Price Rule, pursuant to NasdaqgListing Rule 5810(c)
(3)(A). On November 30, 2023, we effected a reverse stock split of our common stock, and on December 15, 2023,
wereceived notice from Nasdaq that we had regained compliance with the Minimum Bid Price Rule.A OnJune 17, 2024,
we received a notice from Nasdaq indicating that, based upon our non-compliance with the Minimum Bid Price Rule,
the Staffhad determined to delist our securities from Nasdaq unless we timely requested a hearing before the Panel.
Because we are subject tothe Panel Monitor, the Staff did not grant additional time for the Company to regain
compliance with the Minimum Bid Price Rule. We timelyrequested a hearing before the Panel, which was held on July
25, 2024. Our request for a hearing stayed any suspension or delisting actionby the Staff. At such hearing we requested
an extension within which to evidence compliance with the Minimum Bid Price Rule. On August2, 2024, we received a
notice from Nasdaq stating that the Panel determined to grant our request for an exception through August 23,2024 to
demonstrate compliance with the Minimum Bid Price Rule. Accordingly, the Panel granted our request for continued
listing on Nasdaq,subject to: 1) on or before August 9, 2024, the Company effecting a reverse stock split at a ratio of
between 1-for-3 and 1-for-15; and2) on or before August 23, 2024, the Company demonstrating compliance with the
Minimum Bid Price Rule by evidencing a closing bid priceof $1.00 or more per share for a minimum of ten consecutive
trading sessions. On August 9, 2024, we completed a one-for-twelve reversestock split in an effort to evidence
compliance with the Minimum Bid Price Rule. On September 9, 2024, we were formally notified thatthe Panel
determined the Company has regained compliance with the Minimum Bid Price Rule.A Inthe event that our closing bid
price again falls below $1.00 per share for more than 30 consecutive business days, we will no longerbe in compliance
with the Minimum Bid Price Rule, and as a result of the Panel Monitor, we would receive a Delist Determination
Letterand we would have an opportunity to request a new hearing with the initial Panel or a newly convened Hearings
Panel if the initial Panelis unavailable. There can be no assurance that we will continue to maintain compliance with the
Minimum Bid Price Rule or the other Nasdaqlisting requirements.A Wemust satisfy Nasdaga€™s continued listing
requirements, including, among other things, the Minimum Stockholdersa€™ Equity Ruleand the Minimum Bid Price
Rule, or risk delisting, which could have a material adverse effect on our business. If our common stock andwarrants
are delisted from Nasdagq, it could materially reduce the liquidity of our common stock and warrants and result in a
correspondingmaterial reduction in the price of our common stock and warrants as a result of the loss of market
efficiencies associated with Nasdaqgand the loss of federal preemption of state securities laws. In addition, delisting
could harm our ability to raise capital through alternativefinancing sources on terms acceptable to us, or at all, and may



result in the potential loss of confidence by investors, suppliers, customersand employees and fewer business
development opportunities. If our common stock and warrants are delisted, it could be more difficultto buy or sell our
common stock and warrants or to obtain accurate quotations, and the price of our common stock and warrants could
suffera material decline. Delisting could also impair our ability to raise capital on acceptable terms, if at all.A Item2.
Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of ProceedsA None.A Item5. Other InformationA Inthe third quarter of
2024, no director or officer (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 16a-1(f)) of the Company adopted or terminated a
Rulel0bb5-1 trading arrangement or non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement for the purchase or sale of securities of the
Company, within the meaningof Item 408 of Regulation S-K.A 32 A A Item6. ExhibitsA Exhibit A A A Incorporated by
Reference Number A Exhibit Description A Form A Exhibit A Filing Date 3.1 A Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation of Cingulate Inc., as amended to date A 10-Q A 3.1 A 8/13/2024 3.2 A Amended and Restated Bylaws of
Cingulate Inc. A 10-K A 3.2 A 3/28/2022 4.1 A Form of New Warrant A 8-KA 4.1 A 7/1/2024 4.2 A Form of
Placement Agent Warrant A 8-K A 4.2 A 7/1/2024 10.2 A Form of Inducement Letter A 8-K A 10.1 A 7/1/2024 31.1*
A Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. A A A A A A 31.2¥A
Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-1fl(q) qn(iAerAthAe Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. A A A A A A 32.1* A Certification
of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002. A A A A A A 32.2%¢ A Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. A A A A A A 101.INS*A A XBRL
Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are
embedded within the Inline XBRL document. A A A A A A 101.SCH* A Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema A
A A A A A 101.CAL* A Inline XBRL Extension Calculation Linkbase A A A A A A 101.DEF* A Inline XBRL
Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase A A A A A A 101.LAB* A Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase
A A AAA A 101.PRE*A Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase A A A A A A 104* A Cover
Page Interactive Data File (formatted in Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101) A A A A A A A *Filed

HerewithA **Furnished HerewithA 33 A A SIGNATURESA Pursuantto the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf bythe undersigned thereunto duly
authorized. A A CINGULATE INC. A A A Date: November 7, 2024 By: /s/ Shane J. Schaffer A A Shane J. Schaffer A
A Chairman and Chief Executive Officer A A (Principal Executive Officer) A A A Date: November 7, 2024 By: /s/
Jennifer L. Callahan A A Jennifer L. Callahan A A Chief Financial Officer A A (Principal Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer) A 34 A A Exhibit31.1A CERTIFICATIONOF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANTTOSECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002A I,Shane J. Schaffer, certify that:A A 1.1 have
reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2024 of Cingulate Inc.; A A A A 2.
Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; A A A A 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial
statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; A A
A A 4. The registranta€™s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: A A A A A a)
Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is
being prepared; A A A A A A Db) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal
control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles; A A A A A A c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registranta€™s
disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and A
A A A A A d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registranta€™s most recent fiscal quarter (the registranta€™s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of
an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registranta€™s internal
control over financial reporting; and A A A A A 5. The registranta€™ s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed,
based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registranta€™s auditors and the
audit committee of the registranta€™s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): A A A A

A a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registranta€™s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and A A A A A A b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or
other employees who have a significant role in the registranta€™ s internal control over financial reporting. A Date:
November 7, 2024 /s/ Shane J. Schaffer A Shane J. Schaffer A Chief Executive Officer A (Principal Executive Officer)
A A A Exhibit31.2A CERTIFICATIONOF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANTTOSECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002A I,Jennifer L. Callahan, certify that:A A 1.1 have reviewed this quarterly report on
Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2024 of Cingulate Inc.; A A A A 2. Based on my knowledge, this report
does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this report; A A A A 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial
information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; A A A A 4. The registranta€™s
other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: A A A A A a) Designed such disclosure
controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; A A A A A A b)



Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
A A A A A A c)Evaluated the effectiveness of the registranta€™s disclosure controls and procedures and presented
in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and A A A A A A d) Disclosed in this report any change in
the registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registranta€™s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registranta€™ s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registranta€™ s internal control over financial reporting; and A A A A A 5.
The registranta€™s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registranta€™s auditors and the audit committee of the registranta€™s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): A A A A A a) All significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registranta€™s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and AAA
A A A b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrantd€™s internal control over financial reporting. A Date: November 7, 2024 /s/ Jennifer L. Callahan A
Jennifer L. Callahan A Chief Financial Officer A (Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer) A A

A Exhibit32.1A CertificationPursuant to18U.S.C. Section 1350,asAdopted Pursuant toSection906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002A ThisCertification is being filed pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted by Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. This Certificationis included solely for the purposes of complying with the provisions of
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and is not intended tobe used for any other purpose. In connection with the
accompanying Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Cingulate Inc. (the 4€ceCompanya€)for the period ended September
30, 2024 (the 4€ceQuarterly Reporta€), the undersigned hereby certifies in his capacity as an officerof the Company
that to such officera€™s knowledge:A A (1) The Quarterly Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a)
or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and A A (2) The information contained in the Quarterly
Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company. A
Dated: November 7, 2024 By: /s/ Shane J. Schaffer A A Shane J. Schaffer A A Chief Executive Officer A A (Principal
Executive Officer) A A A Exhibit32.2A CertificationPursuant to18U.S.C. Section 1350,asAdopted Pursuant
toSection906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002A ThisCertification is being filed pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. This Certificationis included solely for the purposes of
complying with the provisions of Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and is not intended tobe used for any other
purpose. In connection with the accompanying Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Cingulate Inc. (the
a€ceCompanya€)for the period ended September 30, 2024 (the a€eQuarterly Reporta€), the undersigned hereby
certifies in his capacity as an officerof the Company that to such officera€™s knowledge:A A (1) The Quarterly Report
fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and
A A (2) The information contained in the Quarterly Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the finanqiaL
condition and results of operations of the Company. A Dated: November 7, 2024 By: /s/ Jennifer L. Callahan A A
Jennifer L. Callahan A A Chief Financial Officer A A (Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer) A
A AA



